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The Worthington Family and Property 

In the Greater Patapsco Area 
 

Researched and written by 
Dana Marvel, Celia Lange & Martha Bleidner  

 
The Worthington family has figured prominently in the Baltimore area since Captain 
John Worthington, of the English Worthingtons, immigrated to the American Colonies in 
1664.  “In the Hundred of Leyland, Parish of Standish and Palatinate of Lancaster is 
situated the Manor of Worthington. The main stock established at Worthington is 
recorded in the ‘Herald’s Visitations’ and can be traced through the archives as far back 
as the time of Henry III.”i (Thirteenth century).  In Maryland, the Worthington family 
name still graces many areas, such as Worthington Valley, as do the names of other 
prominent landholders from this time-period, names familiar to current residents of the 
Baltimore area; Owings (of Owings Mills), Hammond (of Hammond’s Ferry), Howard 
(Howard County), Shipley (Shipley’s Delight).  Most, if not all, of these early families 
are now intertwined, their descendents linked by marriages and births over the years.   
 
The presence of the Worthington family has influenced the Greater Patapsco area in 
several ways.  The Greater Patapsco area lies at the extreme western end of Baltimore 
County, along the Patapsco River, which separates it from Howard County. Part of the 
area, which is now known as Granite, has a long history of stone quarrying, dating back 
to the late 1700’s, and becoming nationally known in the early 1800’s.  An Englishman, 
Captain Walters established the first quarry on land originally owned by his wife, 
Elizabeth Worthington Walters. ii A second quarry, known as Fox Rock, was also located 
on land that was part of the Worthington estate. iii The exceptionally fine granite from 
these quarries was used for the original Smithsonian Institute, the Washington 
Monument, the U.S. Treasury Building, the Library of Congress, and many other 
buildings in Washington, D.C., Baltimore, and elsewhere around the country. iv  
 
Manual labor, mainly provided by slaves, was used to quarry the stone during the early 
years of production. Flat bed wagons transported the finished granite pieces from the 
quarries to the Baltimore and Ohio railroad terminal at Woodstock, a town near the 
Patapsco River.v A two-mile spur of the railroad, built from the river to the Worthington 
property gave the Waltersville quarry an advantage in transporting the stone.  
 
Waltersville, now known as Granite, was originally named after Captain Walters. The 
town was a thriving center of homes, businesses, and churches, comprised mostly of 
residents who made their living at the three local granite quarries.vi  Granite, Maryland is 
now listed on the National Registry of Historic Sites. 
 
Nearby, thousands of additional acres of land in the Greater Patapsco area were also 
owned by members of the Worthington family and their descendants. Col. John 
Worthington, Jr. (b. 1/12/1689 – d. 12/12/1765) was one of the sons of Captain John 
Worthington and Sarah Howard. He was born and lived in Anne Arundel County, but 



Copyright 2000 D. Marvel, C. Lange, M. Bleidner  2 of 12 

owned large parcels of land throughout the Baltimore area.  Married twice, first to Helen 
Hammond, daughter of Col. Hammond, and second to Comfort Hammond, daughter of 
John Hammond, he had a number of children, at least four of whom were still alive in 
1765, although both his wives had pre-deceased him. Considered a prosperous merchant, 
at the time of his death on December 12, 1765, Col. John Worthington Jr.’s will specified 
the distribution of 6980 identified acres of property, as well as additional named parcels 
of land whose individual acreage is not mentioned.  These properties were divided among 
his children and grandchildren as well as other individuals, whose relationship is not 
specified in the will.vii  
 
One such distribution was ”To son Thomas, 3 tracts on the Patapsco, some 1680 acres”.  viii  
These three tracts of land along with additional purchased and inherited Worthington 
family property formed the nucleus of the Patapsco-area Worthington Plantation 
holdings, which by the late 1870’s, comprised over 3,500 acres. ix  A large portion of the 
plantation’s lands were kept intact and allowed to revert to a wild state during the latter 
part of the twentieth century. This was a very different fate from that of so many other 
large holdings from the early years of Maryland’s history, which were sub-divided and 
re-developed beyond recognition.  This lack of development has resulted in a potential 
wealth of untouched archeological sites for the gathering of information on land use, and 
slave and farm management by major landholders in the 1700’s and 1800’s. 
 
Thomas Worthington (b. 5/2/1739 – d. 1821) was the youngest son of Col. John 
Worthington Jr. and his second wife, Comfort Hammond.  Thomas married Elizabeth 
Hammond (b. 8/17/1725 – d.10/4/1784) on August 21, 1761.  They had two children, 
John and Reuben.  After Elizabeth’s death, he married his second wife, Marcella Owings 
(b. 7/5/1748 – d.1842), daughter of Joshua and Mary Owings on April 9, 1786.x  They 
had five children, Mary Owings Worthington (b. 1/16/1786 – d. 7/25/1869), Noah 
Worthington (b. about 1789 – d. 1/9/1872), Thomas Dye Worthington (b. about 1791 – d. 
7/8/1823), Rezin Hammond Worthington (b. 6/28/1794 – d. 6/22/1884), and Joshua 
Worthington (b. about 1790 – d. 11/9/1804).xi  Rezin Hammond Worthington was 
probably named after his grandmother Comfort Hammond’s brother, Rezin Hammond.xii  
 
It was Rezin who occupied and farmed the original tracts that Thomas had inherited, 
along with additional acreage that totaled 3500 acres by 1871.  Rezin’s brother Noah, and 
various other Worthingtons also took up residence in the general area, continuing to 
increase the total Worthington holdings.  Rezin Hammond Worthington was married 
twice, first to Rachel Shipley (b. about 1806 – d. January 14, 1823).  She was only 
seventeen years old when she died.  Their only child was Thomas Chew Worthington 
(b.1823 – d.1903). xiii 
 
Thomas Chew Worthington lived most of his life with his father.  In 1850, Thomas Chew 
married Louisa Davis.xiv  He was on the board of trustees for the schools of the second 
district (now the first district) in 1881 and died in 1903.xv The first public school of the 
Second District of Baltimore County was located on a ½ acre site acquired from his 
father, Rezin Worthington, in 1859, according to Baltimore County school records. xvi 
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Rezin later married Mary Shipley (b. March 28, 1816 – d.1854) and they had nine 
children, four sons, and five daughters.  Mary Elizabeth Worthington (about 1834), Noah 
Hall Worthington (b. 3/31/1835 – d. 6/1/1880), Marcella Owings Worthington (b. about 
1836), Rezin Hammond Worthington, Jr. (b. 12/13/1839 – d. 3/22/1872), Anne H. 
Worthington (b. 6/4/1846 – d. 5/9/1929), Rachel Althea Worthington (b. 1848), and 
Sarah B. (Sally Belle) Worthington and two other sons who died young. xvii  During the 
war of 1812, Rezin Worthington responded to a call for volunteers to defend Baltimore, 
despite a recently broken leg. xviii  Rezin, whom the 1850 census described as a 56-year 
old farmer, was listed with a worth of $44,000, a considerable fortune in those days. xix   
 
“In the Civil War, Maryland soldiers fought in both the Union and Confederate armies. 
Pro-Southern sentiment ran high in slave-holding areas. The Waltersville/Woodstock area 
made its contribution to the Confederate Army of Northern Virginia.”xx In 1859, Rezin 
Hammond Worthington was one of 26 Baltimore County delegates selected to attend a 
statewide Slaveholder’s Convention.  The number of slaves reported in Baltimore County 
had been dropping in the decades since the 1820 slave census, from 6695 in 1820 to 3182 
in 1860.xxi  A N.D. paper located in the Maryland Historical Society Archives is titled 
Rezin H. Worthington’s inventory of slaves, contains a list of numbers, and appears to 
list the total as 2077.xxii In 1864, during the Civil War, Rezin, a prominent Democrat, was 
arrested and briefly incarcerated at Fort Dix, a Union fort built along the Patapsco River 
in Relay, Maryland.  He was arrested for refusing to take the oath to support the Union 
movement and give up his slaves.xxiii  
 
The impact of the Civil War on the economy in the area showed up in many ways.  
According to an article published in 1878, it had been sales to the Worthingtons for their 
“army of slaves” that had kept the Wright’s Mill in business producing “beat hominy”.  
The introduction of “pearl hominy” had reduced the demand for the mill’s product, but it 
was the Civil War, and the subsequent freeing of the slaves that had caused the mill’s 
revenues to drop off dramatically.xxiv   
 
In later years it was said of Rezin, “Among the oldest and most estimable citizens of this 
district is Rezin Hammond Worthington, …  ” “Although in his eighty-eighth year, he is 
a man of wonderful memory, with a great knowledge of American History, and well read 
in current events of the day.  He is a fine type of the old-school gentleman, whose dignity 
and courtesy are specially proverbial in the State of Maryland.”xxv 
 
Rezin and his second wife, Mary, are both buried in the private family cemetery. There is 
also a grave with the initials R. W. and the date 1823, which may belong to Rezin’s first 
wife, Rachel Worthington, although this cannot be proven at this time.  This particular 
Worthington family burial plot is located on one of the original parcels of land that 
Thomas inherited from Col. John Worthington Jr., and it has been used by the family 
since its beginning.  The oldest known grave is that of Elizabeth Hammond, first wife of 
Thomas Worthington, who died October 4, 1784.  One of the largest tombstones relates 
the information that Mary A. C. Worthington, who had already lost one child in 1859, 
lost her five remaining children in the 14-month period between June 29, 1876 and 
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August 11, 1876.  Her husband, Noah Hall Worthington, died less than four years later in 
June of 1880.xxvi 
 
This cemetery is fenced and has been maintained to some extent, located as it is, on a 
portion of Worthington land still owned by a descendent of the Worthington family. It is 
in a remote, landlocked portion of the old Worthington estate, and has survived without 
much vandalism.  The headstones are intact for the most part, and many are still legible. 
There are five generations of Worthingtons buried in the cemetery, beginning with 
Thomas, himself.  He is buried between his two wives, Elizabeth Hammond (mother of 
Reuben, and grandmother of Henry Gaither Worthington) and Marcella Owings 
Worthington. In addition, Thomas and Elizabeth’s two children, and Thomas and 
Marcella’s five children, including Rezin and Noah, and several more generations of 
Worthington’s are all buried at this site. This cemetery was in use well into the twentieth 
century, with the most recent burial occurring in 1971.xxvii        
 
Not far away from the Worthington family burial plot is another burial plot, this one 
located on land with even more historical significance. In addition to the larger 
Worthington family cemetery, there is the very early Marcella Chapel cemetery. xxviii  

 
One of the most significant historical contributions of the Worthington family was their 
very early conversion to the Methodist religion. Methodism in America came first to 
Maryland, Pennsylvania and New York. In the early 1770’s, Francis Asbury, who had 
come from England to spread the word of Wesley, became acquainted with another 
prominent local family, that of Joshua Owings.  “Mr. Owings and his family were 
Episcopalians, but in those days there was a very slender thread between those of that 
creed and the New Methodists.  In fact, the Methodist are said to have still considered 
themselves, and were generally held to be, members of the Episcopal Church, forming 
only one of the parties within that denominations. So there is nothing strange about the 
close friendship that grew up between Mr. Asbury and Mr. Owings, or the fact that the 
former was a frequent guest in the latter’s home.”xxix  Joshua Owings “became one of the 
first converts of Robert Strawbridge to Methodism… and his house was one of the 
regular stopping places of the preachers of that denomination on their rounds.  Asbury 
made it his headquarters and has left some pleasing memoranda about the family.” “The 
new creed took such a hold in the Owings home that Richard Owings, son of Joshua, 
became, “if not at first, one of the first native Methodist preachers ordained.”,xxx and was 
“ordained in Baltimore in 1772”.xxxi 
 
Thomas Worthington, a well-to-do landowner in the area, at that time embraced 
Methodism, presumably through association with Francis Asbury and Richard Owings.   
As Methodism became known in Maryland, “weekly classes were formed, under a leader, 
usually a layman, who would inquire concerning the spiritual state of each member, 
collect offerings, and refer any problems or matters of discipline to the traveling preacher 
when he appeared once every two or four weeks on his round of the circuit. Asbury 
established these classes in Baltimore in 1773.” xxxii 
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“The names of those enrolled were put on the ‘class paper”. The earliest known printed 
class paper in America is preserved at the Lovely Lane Museum. It is from the class of 
Thomas Worthington, leader, and “was maid the 30 of Jany, 1775”xxxiii  ‘The paper 
contains the names of 16 members including Thomas Worthington’s first wife Elizabeth 
Hammond Worthington, the Wells, the Stinchcombs, the Randalls (of Randallstown), the 
Cromwells, and the Jones, all of whom owned large tracts of local land, as indicated by 
18th and 19th century land grant maps.xxxiv  Columns on the class paper “are provided to 
record their state in life - married or single, state in grace -‘s’ for seeker, ’b’ for born 
again, or converted, also their weekly attendance and amounts contributed”, which were 
in “shillings and pence”, as this class paper dates to pre-revolutionary war times.”xxxv 
  
This “class paper” was donated to the Lovely Lane Museum in 1860, by Henry Fite.  Fite 
was the husband of Mary Owings Worthington, and the son- in- law of Marcella and 
Thomas Worthington.  Lovely Lane considers it one of their most important artifacts 
from the foundation of Methodism in America.xxxvi 
  
In 1786, Marcella Owings, sister of Richard Owings, the first native American Methodist 
minister, became Thomas Worthington’s second wife.  Marcella “must have had a great 
leaning toward, if she did not actually embrace”, the Wesley creed and handed her 
persuasion down to her son, Rezin Hammond Worthington. xxxvii  
 
It was in 1827 that Rezin’s mother, Marcella Owings Worthington, became interested in 
the establishment of a Chapel of the faith in the Second District (of Baltimore County).  
She enlisted the aid of her wealthy son in the enterprise.  Rezin, at the urging of his 
mother, donated an acre of ground and a contribution, said to have been one thousand 
dollars, to the building fund for the founding of the Marcella Chapel. xxxviii  

 
The deed by which Rezin Worthington conveyed the one acre of ground to Cornelius 
Howard, Nicholas Owings, Abraham Jessop, George Zimmerman and John Kelso, as 
trustees, for the purpose of building a house of worship ‘for the use of members of the 
Methodist Episcopal Church in the United States of America’ was dated May 28th, 1827, 
and it is safe to assume that Marcella Chapel was built either that year or the next.xxxix 

 
“The chapel stood on the crest of a wooded hill, overlooking a deep ravine, with its 
cemetery extending to the rear, partly down the gentle slope and around to the south side.  
It was a plain, oblong, stone structure about fifty by thirty feet in size, with a gable roof, 
narrow entrance door and four windows. The benches, pulpit and chancery rail are said to 
have been made from cherry. It was lighted at night by coal oil lamps, heated by a large 
egg stove and had a slave gallery extended across the last end over the entrance door.”xl  
 
“Now in a state of ruin, with little more than the foundation and a few of the gravestones 
intact”, “the picturesque ruins are none other than those of that early house of worship for 
Maryland followers of Wesley, and in the uncared-for cemetery sleep some of the 
section’s most prominent residents”xli of that era. 

 



Copyright 2000 D. Marvel, C. Lange, M. Bleidner  6 of 12 

From about 1827 until about 1868, “the neighborhood’s early converts to the 
comparatively new creed of Strawbridge and Asbury gathered in the place to sing hymns 
and listen to long-drawn sermons and prayers.  The chapel thrived until the establishment 
of Mt. Olive in 1858, when attendance began to fall off.”xlii  Marcella Chapel was last 
reported as an active church in the minutes of the Quarterly Conference Minutes of 
Baltimore County Methodist Circuit Ministers in 1868, although there was an entry that it 
was being used as a Sunday School in 1869.xliii Sometime between 1868 and 1877, by 
various accounts, Mrs. Marcella Worthington Dorsey, its founder, began the erection of 
St. Paul’s Methodist Episcopal Church, in Granite, which became known on the 
Ministers Circuit as “The Quarries”.  
 
The Marcella Church was such a well-known and important landmark in the area that Old 
Court Road was known as “Marcella Church Road”, and later as “Old Marcella Church 
Road long after the Marcella Church ceased to be used. The road later was referred to as 
“ the road to Joppa”, or “Joppa Road”, before becoming the “road to the Court”, “Court 
Road” and finally, “Old Court Road”.xliv 

 
Very few headstones remain visible in the cemetery, which is not fenced, so the original 
outline is unknown.  The most complete record of these stones was made by local 
historian, Beverly Griffith, in 1969, and at that time the oldest stone read “Maurice 
Baker, Feb. 6, 1827, 57 years”. Others include his wife Rachel (1840), Lloyd Baker 
(1845), Amelia Raney (1840), Mary Ann, wife of Levi Crouch (1842), Rich (?) Duvall 
(1846), and Sarah Elizabeth, daughter of Mary A. and Levi Crouch (1852).xlv These 
remaining tombstones are located on the north side of the church ruins. Based on the 
account of the location of cemetery as extending behind the church and to the south side, 
it appears that a large number of tombstones have been removed or destroyed over the 
years, leaving the location of many of the congregations burial plots unknown at this 
time. 

 
In addition to the grave markers, there were two mausoleums, containing members of the 
Worthington family.  One is gone altogether, but the second crypt remains in amazingly 
good condition.  It is rectangular in shape, approximately 10’ x 18’ in dimensions, with a 
flat roof fronted with a peaked slab, and is presumably made of local granite, for which 
the area is named. It contains 6 slabs for coffins inside, although it is reported that the 
crypts were vandalized in the distant past, and is unknown whether Worthington remains 
still exist at that site. The entry of the crypt has a large, polished granite slab over the 
door which reads “JOHN WORTHINGTON, OF JOHN, 1838”.xlvi This is apparently the 
grave of the younger John Worthington, son of John Worthington and Anne Dorsey, 
grandson of Thomas Worthington by his first wife Elizabeth Hammond and great-
grandson of Col. John Worthington Jr.  This mausoleum is striking in its size and 
opulence, and appears totally out of character for a small country cemetery, indicating 
again that the Worthington family was indeed wealthy and occupied a prominent position 
in the community.xlvii 
 
The ownership and maintenance of the Marcella Chapel, crypts, graves and surrounding 
area have been the focal point of controversy and confusion for centuries.  
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In 1874 the Quarterly Conference Minutes of Baltimore County Methodist Circuit 
Ministers reported that, “Reverend J.P. Wright and John L. Turner were appointed a 
committee to investigate the condition and title of Marcella Chapel.”xlviii 
 
In 1879 it was reported in the Quarterly Conference Minutes of Baltimore County 
Methodist Circuit Ministers, that “The tomb has been broken open, and Worthington 
family bones are scattered on the grounds”.xlix 

  
In 1909 the Quarterly Conference Minutes of Baltimore County Methodist Circuit 
Ministers reported that “A committee intends to look into the title of Marcella Chapel.” 
This action followed a motion in 1895 to investigate selling the property, but no record of 
a sale being completed. l 
 
The following article was published in the “Catonsville Argus” on April 12, 1935: 
 

PASTOR CLEARS UP CONTROVERSY CONCERNING 
DENOMINATION OF OLD CHURCH 

 

Recently, in response to a request as to the denomination of the Old Marcella 
Church on Old Court Rd. between Liberty Heights and Windsor Mill Rd., 
Woodlawn, The Rev. Ralph W. Watt, pastor of Mt. Olive Methodist Episcopal 
Church, Roslyn, clarified the issue by declaring that the original Marcella Church 
had been Methodist Episcopal and that the control of the property still resided in 
his own church. A number of old tombstones, containing names of early members 
of the congregation are still visible in the neighborhood of the remains of the old 
edifice, which is located on what was once the Worthington Property. li 

 
In 1986, local historian Beverly Griffith reported that property owners from adjoining 
land had removed stones from the site to build a foundation for a building.lii 
 
Ownership of the one-acre site containing the ruins of the Marcella Chapel and graveyard 
is still in question at this time. Interviews with Reverend Edwin Schell, Executive 
Secretary of the Lovely Lane Methodist Church Museum indicate that the Methodist 
Church has no record of ever selling the property, although they have not maintained it in 
over a hundred years.  A local property owner whose land is adjoining to the site claims 
ownership, but to date no proof of that has been forthcoming. 
 
A third cemetery, said to be located on the Worthington lands is that of their slaves, 
which by some reports may have numbered in the thousands. The widespread 
Worthington family holdings probably comprised the biggest slaveholders in the area, 
being referred to in an 1878 issue of the Baltimore County Union newspaper that the 
family once has ‘an army of slaves’.liii "With the surrender of Lee to Grant at 
Appomattox Court House in 1865, the Civil War came to an end.  With a few exceptions, 
life here took up where it had left off.  Several freed black families--with names such as 
Rogers, Johnson, and Dorsey--chose to settle in White Grounds (Hebbville).  According 
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to the late Garrison Longley, aged 83 at the time of a 1964 interview, these families were 
former slaves of the Worthingtons, the largest slave owners around, with over 1,200 
slaves in this and other areas."liv 
 
 Slave graves often were marked with wooden crosses or a single stone, instead of carved 
tombstones, which is why the location of the slave cemetery(s) is not known.”lv  Much of 
the Worthington land that fronts Old Court and Dogwood Roads has been developed, as 
well as two large parcels along Dogwood Road, one of which is now a cemetery, and one 
of which is a residential community.  At the time these properties were developed, local 
historians and descendants of the Worthington slaves demanded thorough examination of 
both the properties to insure that no slave remains would be disturbed. lvi   
 
No evidence of the slave cemetery was found, leading to the conclusion that the as-yet- 
undiscovered burial site of perhaps hundreds of Worthington slaves is probably located 
on one of the three remaining large, contiguous, undeveloped tracts of Worthington Land. 
These three parcels, comprising approximately 455 acres, formed the nucleus of the 
Rezin Hammond Worthington Plantation.  These undeveloped tracts hold the remains of 
the original home site, many outbuildings, a large family cemetery, and many other 
relics, which still exist in a virtually undisturbed state.  The potentially significant 
historical loss due to development of the properties and the destruction of the sites is 
incalculable.         
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lvi“Woman Seeks To Solve Mystery Of  Slave Gravesites”, Baxter Smith, Randallstown News, A1-A3, 
September 12, 1990. 
  

ADDITIONAL REFERENCE MATERIALS 
 
“Soldier’s Delight Hundred in Baltimore County” by Edw. Fourier, Maryland Historical Magazine, Vol. 1, 
1906 (Marcella’s death, p. 148) (grandson settled… p. 149) 
 
Maryland Historical Magazine, vol. 46,48. 
 
Herald Argus, 1881-1940 – MSA SC3322 
 
The Baltimore Countian – OCLC 18652587 
 
Inventory of African-American Historical & Cultural Resources, Marcella Chapel – BA2476  
 
MARYLAND STATE ARCHIVES:   
 
Baltimore Circuit Methodist Episcopal Church Collection – Marcella church – MSA SC 4000 microfilm # 
M 1587 & #M 1586 
 
Captain John Worthington – MSA SC 1858, location 00/11/03/34 
 
John Stinchcomb (1815 – ACC#1-33, MS NO 349-33, location 2/16/7/22 
 
Special Collections, Whitney Collection of Baltimore County, Box 17 of 23 
 
Article on Marcella Chapel in the Jeffersonian, dated Oct. 10, 1947 – Microfilm #M 4033 
 
MARYLAND HISTORICAL SOCIETY: 
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Worthington Papers, MS 924, Box 1: 
 
1842 Marcella Owings Worthington Estate, receipted bills.  Also contains list of slaves received from 

Marcella’s estate 
 
Worthington Papers, MS 924, Box 2: 
 
1864-1865 Noah Worthington’s inventory of slaves  
 
1828-1854 Rezin H. Worthington correspondence      

Letter to Marcella with “Diamond Ridge” on envelope  
 
N.D.  Rezin H. Worthington’s inventory of slaves  
 
1829 Rezin H. Worthington – letters referring to land transfers in Baltimore County 
 
1864  Mary O. Worthington Fite – inventory of slaves  
 
1872-1884 Thomas Chew Worthington correspondence – letter to Col. W. Offutt 
 
N.D.   Worthington family list of land patents – Randalls Lot, 1747, Christopher   
  Randall 
 
1837     Land papers including Randalls meadow, with mention of Court Road 

 
This box also contains land papers of Brice’s Share, with a mention of Diamond Ridge, Howard’s Fancy, 
Jacob’s Delight, Cockermouth with degrees listed for the land, and Petticoat’s Benefit which includes 
hand-drawn maps.   
 
Howard Papers, Box MS 469: 
 
1871  Anne Marie Chew 
  
ADDITIONAL MARYLAND HISTORICAL SOCIETY FILES USED: 
 
MS 1406 – Worthington land 
 
MS 1656 – Nicholas Worthington 
 
MS 923 – John & Samuel Worthington (1740-1808) 
 
MS 2816 – Randall Family 
 
MS 196 – Cradock Family 
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Appendix 2 
 

R. Christopher Goodwin & Associates, Inc., 
 Summary of Results of Archeological Reconnaissance Survey on a 

Parcel of Land within the Boundaries of the Worthington Plantation 
in Baltimore County, Maryland 

 (Frederick, Maryland, January 4, 2000) 
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Appendix 3 
 

Partial Listing of Inscriptions from the Marcella Chapel Cemetery1 
 
 
The surviving Worthington Crypt bears the simple inscription "John Worthington 1838-1888", 
but it is known to have contained at least six Worthington family members.  In addition, 
according to the testimony of neighboring landowner (since 1941) Mr. Dave Griffith, a second 
crypt of similar size was located between Marcella Chapel and the standing Crypt. 
 
Mary Ann, Wife of Levi Crouch, Died Aug. 13, 1842 

Amelia Raney, Consort of Allen M. Raney, Died March 3, 1840 

Rich(?) Duvall, Died Aug. 5, 1846 

Sarah Elizabeth, daughter of Mary A. and Levi Crouch, died Nov. 28, 1852 

R.D. 

John Worthington (of John Nov. 1838) [the standing Crypt] 

Lloy G. Baker (died?) Aug. 7, 1845 

Maurice Baker (died?) Feb. 6, 1827 

Rachel, Wife of Maurice Baker (died?) Jan. 21st, 1840 

Harriet R., daughter of J.L. and M.L. Sterns, (died?) Jan. 8, 1846 

Stone with no inscription 

A.R. 

E.C. 

R.B. 

M.B. 

L.G.B. 

 

  

                                                 
1 Adapted and condensed by Joseph N. Tatarewicz from Baltimore County Historical Society, Baltimore County 
Cemeteries, 4-Volumes (MF 187.B2.B231).  Original entries transcribed by Granite Historian Beverly Griffith, ca 
1969. 
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Appendix 4 
 

Partial Listing of Inscriptions from the Worthington Family 
Cemetery2 

 
 

Rezin Hammond Worthington 6/22/1884 90 yrs [“Rezin  H. Worthington; Died June 22, 1884; 

In the 90th Year of His Age”] 

Mary (Shipley) W wife of Rezin H b 3/28/1816 d 8/31/1854  

Mary O Fite relict Henry Fite 7/25/1869 83 yrs  

Thomas Dye Worthington 7/8/1823 34 yrs  

Joshua Worthington 11/9/1804 14 yrs  

Marsella (Owings) relict Thomas W 4/27/1842 94 yrs  

Thomas Worthington 3/16/1821 82 yrs  

Elizabeth Hammond consort Thomas W b 8/17/1725 d 10/4/1784 59 yrs 1 mon 17 days  

Margaret Rupp Love w/o Walter Ruben Rupp 11/27/1875 - 8/16/1957  

Walter Ruben Rupp 9/17/1868 - 2/25/1940  

Celeste Virginia w/o F Howard Harvey d/o James H Love & Annie Worthington Love 

11/20/1870-10/27/1924  

Samuel M Warns 11/2/1871-12/9/1927  

Agnes Love Warns 8/4/1879 - 8/29/1966  

William Williamson Carr 5/20/1871 - 2/14/1942  

Anne Isabelle Love w/o Wm Carr 9/19/1842 - 1/24/1958  

Annie Worthington w/o James H Love 6/4/1846 - 5/9/1929  

James Henry Love 7/6/1846 - 11/22/1923  

Anne consort of John Worthington 12/16/1820 54yr [“In Memory of ANN Consort? Of John 

Worthington who departed this life on the 13th? Of December 1820 in the 54th year of her age”]  

                                                 
2 Date style converted, as transcribed from AWW; square brackets contain Joseph N. 
Tatarewicz transcription from photographs taken by Richard Klein. 
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John Worthington 3/18/1829 66yrs  

Reuben Worthington 9/18/1823 21 yrs  

Thomas Worthington 1/23/1834 49 yrs  

Noah Worthington of John to his beloved sister Comfort Worthington 11/28- 6/25/1856  

Catherine Althea Love w/o J A Burgess 6/1/1865 - 1/7/1912  

Rezin Hammond Worthington Love 2/10/1880 - 2/13/1881  

Nicholas D s/o John & Anne Worthington d 1/20/1860 72 yrs  

Grenelda C d/o Nicholas D & Matilda Worthington d 10/7/1852 9 mon 7 days  

Nicholas E Worthington s/o ?...  

Nicholas JOD, s/o Nicholas & Matilda Worthington 1/15/1844 4 yrs 11 mon 3 days  

Ann G Moore d 4/17/...  

Ann Hall Moore d/o ....  

Alfred L Moore s/o Alfred L & Ann G Moore d 4/28/1835 15 mon  

Rachel G Welsh 6/25/1828 17 yrs 9 mon  

Noah H Worthington b 3/31/1835 d 6/1/1880 Mary A C Worthington w/o Noah b 2/5/1835 d 

12/16/1909 children - Noah d 4/29/1859 3 mon J Gist d 6/29/1875 19 yrs Rezin H d 7/8/1875 14 

mon Thomas Hall d 8/11/1876 14 yrs  

Rezin H Worthington, J Mason 12/13/1839 - 3/22/1872  

Augusta Love Cline 4/1/1874 - 8/13/1954  

Arthur Leland Cline 12/29/1857 - 3/14/1930  

Henry James Hebb b 12/16/1882 - 7/31/1954*  

Alma Loretta (Love) Hebb 2/9/1885-3/19/1971*  

Tall Monument with several names (adults through children and contains reference to the flu) 
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Appendix 5:  Major Research Collections and Abbreviations 
 

MHS  Maryland Historical Society Worthington MSS 

BCLR Baltimore County Land Records, County Courthouse, Towson 

BCHS Baltimore County Historical Society 

PRATT MD  Pratt Library Maryland Collection 

MSA Maryland State Archives, Annapolis, Maryland 

MHT Maryland Historical Trust, Crownsville, Maryland 

USDA United States Department of Agriculture, Soil Conservation Service Aerial 
Photography, National Archives and Records Administration II, College Park, 
Maryland 

GHS Granite Historical Society Records 

GRIFFITH Beverly Griffith Papers, Granite, Maryland 

GPCA Greater Patapsco Community Association Case Files 

AWW Ann Worthington White Geneology of the Worthington Family 



Worthington Manor Historical Report  **DRAFT** 7/24/00 
 

DO NOT QUOTE OR CITE WITHOUT PERMISSION OF GPCA 
 

 
7 

 
 
 

Appendix 6 
 

Beverly M. Griffith, Patapsco-Granite Area Historic Sites 
Inventory1997 

 
Appendix B of the Patapsco/Granite Area Community Plan 

Adopted by the Baltimore County Planning Board September 1998, by 
the Baltimore County Council [DATE?] 

 

“There is an extensive number of historic buildings and sites that have the 
potential for listing on an individual basis as Baltimore County Landmarks on 
the Preliminary or Final Landmarks list. (See Appendix B for a list.) There is 
also the possibility of creating a satellite District for a significant cluster of 
historic resources that are fundamental to the character of the area, without 
which the area would be altered irreparably. A historic preservation master 
plan is needed as is a strategy for an in-depth evaluation of the historic 
resources and a priority list for historic reservation. The Granite Historical 
Society working in conjunction with the Greater Patapsco Community 
Association, property owners and the county's architectural historian, John 
McGrain should develop this plan and strategy.”  (p. 4) 
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Appendix 7:  Figures 
 

1. Rezin Hammond Worthington, from Sharf.3   

 

                                                 
3 Rezin H. Worthington portrait from J. Thomas Scharf, History of Baltimore City and County, 
from the earliest period to the present day: including biographical sketches of their 
representative men  (Philadelphia: L. H. Everts, 1881; reprinted Baltimore: Regional Pub. Co., 
1971), between pp. 832-833. 
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2. Worthington Holdings and Sites Overview4 

                                                 
4 Base Map Topo USA, identifications by Tatarewicz. 
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3. Worthington Holdings Land Grant Basis ca 1800 (Horvath 1985) 
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4. Worthington Holdings ca 1877 (Hopkins Atlas) 
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5. Subdivision of Rezin Worthington’s Plantation ca 1880 (Marvel)5

                                                 
5 Upper Map Base: Hebb-Love papers plat maps, Lower Map Base Baltimore County Tax Maps, both assembled 
and annotated by Dana Marvel 
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6. Worthington Manor Historical Resources Confirmed by August 2000 
 
 
 

July 24, 2000INTERNAL USE ONLY
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7. Plan of Marcella Chapel, Cemetery, and Worthington Crypts 

Marcella Chapel, Cemetery,  & 
Worthington Crypts 

Erroneou
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BAME 
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Cry
pt Cry
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20+ Gravestones 
from 
Chapel to beyond 
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8. Marcella Chapel Graves 

9. Worthington Crypt No.  1 
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10. Plan of Worthington Manor Central Complex  
 

 
July 24, 2000INTERNAL USE ONLY

19th-20th cent. 
Barns & Resid. 

Complex

18th-19th cent. 
Tenant House

18th cent. Resid.
Complex Cemetery ca. 

25+ graves
1784-1972

Worthington
Drive continues
to Dogwood d.
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11. Presumed Cadet House 
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12. Twin Residential-Barn Building [TO BE ADDED] 

 

 

13. Worthington Family Cemetery—Rezin H. Worthington Grave 
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14. Worthington Manor Likely Historical Resources Unsurveyed 
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15. Facsimile of Document, Rezin H. Worthington Inventory of Slaves 

 

  
 


